
DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MEETING
Dorr Township Library

Time: July 15, 2024 @ 6:30 pm

Call to Order:

Roll Call:

Changes to the Agenda:

Public Comment & Correspondence:

Approval of the Agenda:

Approval of the Minutes: June 17, 2024

Treasurer’s Report: March, April, May, June. Credit Card - $6,487.95 for June.

Director’s Report:

Committee Reports:

NEW BUSINESS:
1. Discussion and approval of establishing a fund with ACCF
2. Discussion and approval of wage increase and hire of new staff
3. Discussion and approval of Andrea Strong Letter of Interest re: open Board seat
4. Review of renewed Liability Insurance

OLD BUSINESS:
1.

Township Board Meeting: July 25, 2024 7 pm.

Adjournment:

Next regular meeting: August 19, 2024 at 6:30 pm

1



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MEETING

Dorr Township Library

Time: June 17, 2024 @ 6:30 pm

MINUTES

Meeting was called to order at 6:31 PM

Pledge of Allegiance: was said. 

Roll Call: Present- Jeffrey Babbitt, Shana Dykhuis, Carrie Brooks, Bruce Bendull, Michael Rydman. Absent, Brittany 

Hunter. 

 

Changes to the Agenda: None

Public Comment & Correspondence: John Tuinstra asked to speak when New Business Item #3 was addressed.

Approval of the Agenda: Brooks made a motion to approve the Agenda and was seconded by Dykhuis. All yes, 

motion carried.

Approval of the Minutes: Brooks made a motion to accept the minutes from May 20, 2024, and was seconded by 

Rydman.  All yes, motion carried. 

Treasurer’s Report: Due to continuing problems with QuickBooks, Treasurer’s Reports were tabled for the month. 

Dykhuis motioned to pay the credit card for May 2024. Brooks seconded. All yes, motion carried.

Director’s Report:  447 visitors inside the library for Summer Reading Kickoff, 165 signed up first day. Circulation 

statistics are fairly strong.Siegfried Crandall will try to connect with Reilly to fix problems with reconciliation due to 

QuickBooks glitch in the next week. LinkedIn Learning will not be renewed. We have collected $1,200 in Summer 

Reading donations in the first 2 weeks after the fundraising letter was sent. Director continues to attend various 

meetings and trainings. The library has a new volunteer.

Committee Reports: None.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Presentation by Stephanie Calhoun, Pres/CEO of ACCF, on establishing an endowment fund

2. Discussion of issues with Custodial Service. Will monitor for 4 months and revisit.

3. Discussion of letter from John Tuinstra to Director. John asks for 3 actions:

a. Remove offensive Pride Month post. Rydman made a motion to require future Pride Month-related 

posts to be reviewed by the Board in May prior to posting. Bendull seconded. Brooks, Rydman, and 

Bendull Yes, Dykhuis No, motion carried 3-1.

b. Removal of LGBTQIA+ material. Board consensus is No. No action.

c. Promote only traditional community values. Board consensus is that we should continue to not 

promote either side. No action.

2



4. Quarterly Update on Strategic Plan Implementation. Progress is satisfactory.

5. Lexi Adrianse presentation on New Logo

 OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Discussion and Approval of New Logo. Brooks motioned to adopt the new logo. Dykhuis seconded. All yes, 

Motion carried. 

Township Board Meeting: June 27, 2024 7 pm. Director Babbitt is scheduled to attend. 

Adjournment: Brooks motioned to adjourn at  8:01 PM. Bendull seconded. All yes, motion carried. 

Next Regular Meeting: July 15, 2024 at 6:30 pm

Submitted by Jeffrey Babbitt.

3



Director’s Report, July 15, 2024

Library Operation Updates

Recent programs have been well attended. Among the most popular so far are the I Survived-themed

science program with 28, Mushing 101 with 25, and Slime Night with 25. Most of July’s programs, including

Tie-Dye Towels, Steve Tchozesky’s Geodes presentation, the John Ball Zoo and Stuffed Animal Workshop,

and the Dino Adventure Party filled up quickly, and so did their waiting lists. As of 10AM Friday July 12, 252

patrons have signed up for Summer Reading and 37 have finished. Summer Reading wraps up on August 10.

We are offering the Comics Plus database now, locked in for two years at the current rate. The

database offers a surprisingly wide selection of comics, graphic novels, and picture books, and we have high

hopes that it will be popular with patrons.

Statistics

June was a disappointing month for membership stats. Both Active Patrons and Patron Count are down

slightly from last year, and fewer new patrons were signed up than in any recent June except June 2020.

Circulation and database statistics for June are generally comparable to what they were last June. Database

use was up, however, with 118 uses of Ancestry and 22 uses of Mango Languages. DVD circulation was about

half of what it was in June 2023.

Budget and Financial Items

Reilly is in the process of working through QuickBooks issues with Tyler Moulton from Siegfried

Crandall. A glitch occurred in a transaction from March, making everything after impossible to reconcile. We

remain optimistic that the problems can be resolved with some expert assistance.

I will submit a grant application to the Perrigo Charitable Foundation by the end of the month, seeking

$1,350 in funding for Excel Adult High School. Reilly is assembling support for the T-Mobile Hometown Grant,

due in October. The grant would pay for a new digital sign to replace the 10-year-old sign outside the library as

well as a new digital display inside the library. Reilly is currently looking for community partnerships and letters

of support. She respectfully asks Board members to write letters of support for the grant application.

Our CD at Huntington Bank is reaching maturity on July 24, current value $6,683.05. I recommend

reinvestment for 12 months at 4.2% so we can fully evaluate the performance of the ICS at United Bank.

Staff and Building Items

4



The gate at the south end of the Circulation Desk was broken on June 27, removed on July 1, and

repaired and returned by July 5. Staff reported lights out around the Inspirational Fiction shelves, and Township

maintenance was informed on July 26 and reminded July 10.They have not been replaced.

Ben Joseph’s last day is August 15, as he is starting graduate school in the fall. We will be hiring a

replacement soon.

Meetings, Workshops, etc.

On June 19, I attended the DBA meeting at OMG. I am now the sole member of the Subcommittee on

Welcome Packets for New Residents under the Membership Committee and will have an opportunity to recruit

others at the DBA meeting on Wednesday July 17.

On June 27, I met with Becky from CCS, a local cleaning company, for a walkthrough. Her partner sent

a quote for the same amount we currently pay for custodial care.

On July 10, I met with Joe Soules and Za Kulh Bawi of Coverall to switch the contracted franchise

responsible for cleaning the library. This was initiated by Joe, who is a regional Operations Consultant for

Coverall.

The morning of July 11 I attended the Lakeland Library Coop Board and Advisory Council meetings.

That afternoon, I met with Ryan Brown about the renewal of our insurance with Decker Agency.

On July 12, I attended the Michigan Public Library Directors Meeting on Zoom. We discussed the

legalities around political events and candidates happening at the library and recommended redacting the

signature from any signed document we post online. We were also introduced to the Wonder Media Everyday

Media Literacy Kit now available through Library of Michigan. This would be a useful tool in presenting

information literacy in a politically neutral way, if we wanted to develop a program or flyer about this topic.

Volunteers

Mason Drodz is still be doing volunteer work in the library.

Library Closings

We were closed July 4 for Independence Day.

Completed July 15, 2024, at 12:03 AM.

5



2023
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Books 4263 4118 4682 4005 3855 5636 6377 5335 4137 4504 4239 3548

Magazines 230 287 291 392 327 242 266 219 179 170 145 145

Mango Languages 2 49 12 4 0 3 3 6 3 1 2 13

Hoopla 198 198 205 188 174 215 205 217 199 212 187 186

eBooks 259 252 323 273 249 284 404 289 300 318 283 314

eAudiobooks 365 320 388 387 393 462 480 453 396 426 388 355

eMagazines 27 19 34 39 24 48 61 45 60 149 125 108

Libby/Overdrive RLA

Loans 167 171 184 136 163 222 173 186 194 158 181 160

AV 328 237 414 302 269 321 252 249 215 294 229 269

DVDs 879 634 853 995 892 1030 859 764 667 590 568 469

Ancestry 63 13 70 63 52 0 218 84 66 0 105 23

LLC Sent 372 387 475 354 345 473 462 277 210 436 442 368

LLC Borrowed 437 251 394 332 437 285 242 99 91 262 194 131

MeL in 67 56 71 65 55 39 75 53 61 57 55 46

MeL out 70 54 69 67 54 48 70 55 61 61 56 35

2024
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Books 3659 3928 4824 4747 4394 5005

Magazines 172 154 177 261 122 165

Mango Languages 12 3 0 0 7 22

Hoopla 252 229 281 267 255 276

eBooks 347 415 338 331 407 376

eAudiobooks 399 412 433 437 467 459

eMagazines 132 134 135 48 69 58

Libby/Overdrive RLA

Loans 217 207 211 175 147 N/A

AV 348 277 330 285 292 347

DVDs 629 566 682 761 719 641

Ancestry 0 39 0 59 71 118

LLC Sent 430 478 492 453 408 509

LLC Borrowed 267 223 267 237 208 225

MeL in 75 94 76 77 80 75

MeL out 87 91 80 84 88 79

6



7



8



9



10



11



PT Library Assistant I, Dorr Township Library. Tuesdays 10-2, Thursdays 12-8, every
other Saturday. Please submit your cover letter, resume, and 3 non-familial references.
Applications accepted until July 31 at 10:00 am.

Dorr Township Library is seeking an entry-level Library Assistant. We are a Class III
library in a growing semi-urban community with a population of nearly 8,000 in North
Allegan County. The Library Assistant will report to the Director.

Requirements
- High school diploma or GED.
- Basic clerical skills including computer and telephone skills.
- Basic mathematical skills necessary for routine calculations.
- Basic “customer service” skills acquired through volunteer or work experience.
- Ability to work with general supervision and adhere to established policies and

procedures.
- Interpersonal and communication skills for interaction with staff and patrons in an

effective and courteous manner.
- The ability to retrieve library materials from shelves or storage areas and to

answer telephone and patron inquiries.
- Physical ability to push/pull fully loaded book carts, retrieve or place materials

above shoulder or below knee level, and lift/carry materials and delivery bags
weighing up to 50 pounds.

- Manual dexterity, visual acuity and sufficient keyboarding/PC skills to effectively
access information on the computer. Ability to operate a variety of equipment
including computer, cash register, fax and copy machine.

Preferred:
- Some library experience.

Compensation

$11.00 per hour. Benefits include paid time off and paid holidays.

12



Staff Expenses, Projected for FYE 2025, Assuming Wage Increase of 3.5%

Position Old Rate
% 
Change

New
Rate

Ann
Hours

Annual Gross Salary
(incl PTO)

Employer's
Payroll Tax Yearly Total

Total
Payroll Tax

Total
Emp. Wages

Director $22.80 0% $22.80 1650 $37,621.73 $3,009.74 $40,631.47 $8,765.86 $31,865.61
Assistant Director $18.21 6.49% $19.39 570 $11,050.28 $884.02 $11,934.31 $2,574.72 $9,359.59
Cataloger $14.97 6.49% $15.94 684 $10,900.77 $872.06 $11,772.83 $2,539.88 $9,232.95
Library Assistant YS $12.42 6.49% $13.23 990 $13,093.30 $1,047.46 $14,140.77 $3,050.74 $11,090.03
Library Assistant II (Coll) $13.46 6.49% $14.33 1792 $25,675.21 $2,054.02 $27,729.23 $5,982.32 $21,746.91
Library Assistant II (Prog/Mark) $13.97 6.49% $14.88 1026 $15,265.60 $1,221.25 $16,486.85 $3,556.88 $12,929.96
Library Assistant Ib $10.33 6.49% $11.00 475 $5,225.00 $418.00 $5,643.00 $1,217.43 $4,425.58
Library Assistant Ia $11.00 6.49% $11.71 927 $10,858.37 $868.67 $11,727.04 $2,530.00 $9,197.04
BUDGET TOTAL $129,690.27 $10,375.22 $140,065.49 $30,217.83 $109,847.66

Staff Expenses Projected Cost FYE25 Budget
Staff Wages $109,847.66 $110,000.00
Payroll Tax $30,217.83 $30,250.00

Health Insurance $2,000.00 $2,000.00
TOTAL $142,065.49 $142,250.00

13



Proposed 2024-2025 Budget

7/3/2024

2024-2025 Budget

Proposed 2023-2024
General Fund Budget

Proposed 2024-2025
General Fund Budget

Proposed 2024-2025
Capital Projects Fund

Proposed 2024-2025 Budget

Proposed 2024-2025 Budget

Proposed 2023-2024 Bu

Proposed 2023-2024 Bu

Change from
previous year

$274,150.00 $284,050.00 $9,900.00 $15,622.00

$124,650.00 $142,250.00

$28,350.00 $12,400.00

Staff Expenses

Total

Professional Fees

Total

Library Opera�ons

Emp. Wages $96,000.00 $110,000.00 14,000.00
Payroll taxes 3,600.00
Health Insurance 0.00

17,600.00
Emergency Min Wage Increase Fund $14,350.00 $6,500.00
Total with Min Wage Increase $139,000.00 $148,750.00

Audit fee $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00
Collec�on Agency $50.00 $50.00 0.00
Custodial Fees $8,000.00 $5,400.00 -2,600.00
Legal Fees $5,750.00 $2,000.00 -3,750.00
Professional Dues $800.00 $1,000.00 200.00
Library Board Bonding $350.00 $350.00 0.00
Workers Comp $600.00 $600.00 0.00
Strategic Planning $9,800.00 $0.00 -9,800.00

-15,950.00

Books $17,000.00 $20,175.00 3,175.00
$6,700.00 $8,675.00 1,975.00
$5,285.00 $7,100.00 1,815.00
$1,370.00 $1,400.00 30.00
$3,645.00 $3,000.00 -645.00

DVD $1,500.00 $1,675.00 175.00

$26,650.00 $30,250.00
$2,000.00 $2,000.00

Adult
Childrens

Tween
YA

14



   
 

   
 

Andrea Strong 

1812 Railside Ct  

Dorr, Michigan 49323 

andreajoy10986@hotmail.com  

231-282-1136  

July 11, 2024 

  

Carrie Brooks 

Library Board President 

Dorr Township Library 

1804 Sunset Dr, 

Dorr, Michigan 49323 

 

Dear Carrie, 

 

I hope this letter finds you well. I am writing to express my keen interest in applying for a position on the Dorr Township Library 
Board. As a dedicated homeschooling mother and advocate for education, I am eager to contribute to the continued growth and 
enhancement of our local library. 

Residing in Dorr Township for almost seven years, our family has greatly benefited from the resources and community 
programs offered by the Dorr Township Library. I firmly believe in the power of libraries to foster a love of reading and 
learning, and I am passionate about ensuring these opportunities remain accessible to all members of our community. 

My experience as a homeschooling mother has equipped me with organizational skills, curriculum development 
knowledge, and a deep appreciation for educational resources. I understand firsthand the importance of libraries as 
educational hubs and safe spaces for children and families alike.  I am eager to bring these qualities to the board and 
work collaboratively with other members to support and advocate for our library's success. 

I am excited about the prospect of contributing my time and skills to the Dorr Township Library Board, where I can help 
shape policies and initiatives that will benefit our community. I am confident that my dedication to education and my love 
for our local library make me a strong candidate for this position. 

Thank you for considering my application. I look forward to the possibility of discussing how my background and 
enthusiasm align with the goals of the Dorr Township Library Board. Please feel free to contact me at 231-282-1136 or via 
email at andreajoy10986@hotmail.com to arrange a time to further discuss my candidacy. 

Thank you once again for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

 

Andrea Strong 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23


	Agenda07152024.pdf
	minutes20240617.pdf
	07 July Director's report.pdf
	ACCF.pdf
	Library Assistant I Posting Jul 2024.pdf
	Staff Replacement Plan July 2024 - FYE25_6.49.pdf
	Budget 2024-2025_p1.pdf
	Andrea Strong Letter of Interest.pdf
	Decker20240711.pdf



